
ANSWERS TO QUESTIONS OF POTENTIAL TENDERERS FOR THE PROCUREMENT OF 
Supply of GIS Software and supporting IT and GPS equipment for the EU-funded HU-
SRB IPA CBC project Building up and actuation of a Hungarian-Serbian cross-border flood 
and inland water protection system along the Tisza river 

Project reference: HUSRB/0901/121/087

Publication reference: OJ S89

The Centre for Information and Development of Kanjiža, Serbia has received the following questions 
related to the above cited tender, which are now, unedited, being published and answered. 

Questions related to Item nr. 1 - GIS

1. What are the specifications of the existing equipment on which the system is to be installed?

This is a complex investment where the service provider shall, after being chosen during this tender 
procedure, research the details of the connection possibilities with the other existing system in Hungary 
and offer the best solution.

2. Where is the system to be installed?

The system must be installed in the Hungarian-Serbian cross-border area on the Tisza River and in the 
neighbouring areas (some of them are NATURA 2000 where special environmental permits are needed to 
set down the external probes in case the Service Provider offers that kind of solution).  The locations of 
the installments shall be decided in consultation with the The Lower Tisa Environmental and Water 
Directorate of Hungary.

3. Is there a system administration/GIS capacity already presented in the  institution where the 
system is to be installed?

Yes. The Lower Tisa Environmental and Water Directorate is managing a functional system on the 
Hungarian side where most of the relevant data is generated according to floods. The inland water data is 
generated in the Kanjiza region on the Serbian side. Our  GiS system shall communicate with the existing 
system. Negotiations with the Hungarian authorities for permits is the responsibility of the Service 
Provider.

4. What web serving capacity type and speed of internet connection already exist in target 
institution?

The system goes through ftp servers. The web serving capacity of our institution is not relevant. There are 
several possibilities for internet connection depending on the proposed solutions.

5. Additional services mentioned at the end of specification required are expected to be included in 
the price or should they be listed separately?

Every service must be included in the end price.



6. What is the expected delivery time for the system in question?

The functioning system must be delivered and implemented, also integrated with the other functioning 
system within 30 days from the delivery of the contract signature with the preparation period which is 
needed for the blueprints. This requirement is included in the delivery contract due to the fact that this 
CBC project is a project with predefined deadlines that are defined in the subsidy contract of our 
institution with the management authority of the HUSRB IPA CBC Programme.

Questions related to Item nr. 3 - External probes, 10pcs

1. The probes are to be installed permanently or should they be mobile?

Whether the probes are to be installed permanently or they remain mobile depends on the solution the 
Service Provider offers. There are no preferences regarding this matter. What is important is that the 
Provider offers a solution that will result in an interface where all the data will be available in realtime 
according to cross-border flood and inland water. The system has to be able to warn us in time in case of 
any potential disaster. 

2. Are the level meters the only parameters to be measured?

Flow is required as data. The level is also according to flood and inland water. Other parameters should be 
incorporated in the future but are not required to be implemented at this stage of the investment.

3. If there are permanently installed what is the scope of work expected from the tenderer 
regarding installation (are there some civil engineering works required)?

Civil engineering is needed in case the Service Provider will offer a solution for realtime flow 
measurement on the Tisza River. We need only the data which is generated on the Hungarian side of the 
Hungarian-Serbian border region.

4. Is there some part of system from item nr.1 required regarding data collection from probes?

Yes. The main scope of this investment is to have external probes that are communicating with the GiS 
solution communicating with the system of the system of the Lower Tisza Environmental and Water 
Directorate. This institution is a subordinate institution of the Hungarian Ministry of Rural Development. 
Negotiations with the Hungarian authorities is the responsibility of the Service Provider.

Reference: Instruction To Tenderers, Article 11, page 6 of 13”: in the
“Part 3 – Documentation” is requested to insert the following statements:

- Sworn statement - documentary proof or statements required under the
law of the countryin which the company (or each of the companies in
case of a consortium) is established, to show that it does not fall
into the exclusion situations listed in section 2.3.3 of the Practical
Guide to contract procedures for EU external actions. This evidence or
these documents or statements must carry a date, which cannot be more
than 1 year before the date of submission of the tender
- Statement that the Performance guarantee will be provided in the



contracting stage.
Really, these statements are included, for each member if a
consortium, in the Tender Form,Point 7 Declaration (at the item 9 and
6, respectively). Now, do you request to insert further, specific
statements for the above mentioned items or, vice versa, the ones
reported in Point 7are enough?

The Contractor, i.e. the Service provider is also to provide every document that is stated in the 
Instructions to Tenderers document, among others, one should pay attention to include an official 
statement that the Tenderer is has payed all taxes for its revenues, falls under no process of litigation etc. 
This document ought to be provided in English also, if its original language is not English. Also a 
consortium agreement, if the case, between all members of the consortim.

2. Reference: Instruction To Tenderers, Article 11, page 6 of 13”: in
the “Part 1 – Technical Offer” and “Part 2 – Financial Offer”:
technical and financial proposal containing a list of the
manufacturer’s recommended spare parts and consumables (for notebooks
and external probes) has not to be provided. Do you confirm?

The Tenderer can choose which products will be delivered. We do not
have preferences, in case of the offered laptop has parts in the original
package it could be delivered. A statement of origin is to be included for the units delivered. Please see 
the Insturctions to tenderers regarding this question. There are no plus points in the evaluation in case the 
Tenderer offers more than the written minimum specification.

3. Reference: Instruction To Tenderers, Article 11, page 6 of 13”: Are
“after-sales services for 5 years” to be provided also for item 2 and
3 or only for item 1?

Yes, these kinds of services ought to be provided for every item.

4. Reference: Technical Specification point 1-1: 1 piece of Geographic
Information System, accessible from an internet-browser, support
decision-making procedures, continually added (required additional
coordinate search, POI data search, population registration, 3D
information management software modules, maps):

Should the system be able to create/manipulate GIS data, or just to
analyze data coming from external sources? In the first case, together
with the WEB system, is it foreseen a desktop solution for GIS data
manipulation?

The GiS system shall not forecast just analyze the real-time datas and
warn in the case of any disaster.



Are the external sources data types pre-defined, or may they vary?

It depends on the solution the Tenderer offers. We do not have
preferences if the data source through sms, email or direct ftp. We are
interested in the output of the data which shows realtime the level of
the water and inland water. Reporting can be depend also on the
solution offered. We need the realtime data in a gaphical map
interface.

It is not clear what is meant with “3D information management software
modules”: do you mean a 3D viewer? Or a server side module able to run
3D Analysis? Or whatever?

The information management software module should be viewed and
analyzed in a 3D form as well.

The system to be delivered should enable the use on networks and
partial or full exposure on the Internet. In this light, we ask for
some details:

Which is the rough number of concurrent users that will use the web application?

The system has public interfaces connected to our website which could
have 25 000 - 30 000 users on the Serbian side.

On the Hungarian side the public interface is interlinked for the
Lower Tisa Environmental and Water Directorate.

The other sites are for the ICR, Kanjiza Municipality and Lower Tisa
Environmental and Water Directorate workers. Around 75 users shall
log-in and work with the system daily.

Which is the Internet bandwidth of Center for Information and
development of the Tisa
Region ICR ?

The Internet bandwith satisfies every criteria that this hardware and software equipment can require.

To better finalize the design of data infrastructure and the
Geographic Information System to be delivered, can you give us some
details about the hardware and software infrastructure existing at
Center for Information and development of the Tisa Region ICR (DB
server, AS, Operating system, etc.)?



In our point of view our informational infrastructure environment is
not relevant because we are only the end users of the system. I would
like to remind You as above mentioned that ICR is not the only
institution which would use the system. Each institution has the
relevant IT infrastructure background to use such GiS systems.

5. Reference: Technical Specifications, Technical Specification point
1-2: Hydrological inventory and environmental issues:

Does the provided GIS system have to create/manage the rivers network 
and hierarchy, or just to add the information reported in the Technical Specifications?

It is clearly written in the Technical Specifications, it depends on the solution.

6. Reference: Technical Specifications, Technical Specification point
1-5: Maps and Data “GIS digital support should be developed starting
from photomaps, printed or digital maps and topographic data”:

Is the data to be provided or only manipulated (normalized) by the Contractor?

The Contractig Authority is ICR. ICR is responsible fo the acquisition
of this equipment. The Beneficiaries are ICR, Kanjiza Municipality and
Lower Tisa Environmental and Water Directorate on the Hungarian side.
This is a cross border project with beneficiaries on both side. Each
institution will use this system.

Have you planned that the Contractor performs in-filed surveys or only
data collection c/o the competent authorities? Or, finally, will this
data be delivered in rough format directly by the Contracting
Authority / Beneficiaries?

Please find my detailed answer above.

If the last option is the right one, can you provide information about
the “delivery” format (paper, digital, un-structured docs, etc.)?

Data is used digitally with specialized report formats can be
directly printed from the software.

Are the spatial data to be served as OGC compliant map services layers
(e.g.: WMS, WFS, WCF)? In this case they must be enabled also for
external users?

The standards are not specified, depends on the solution the Tenderer offes.

Technical Specifications, Data and graphics:“Graphic data area should



provide the necessary interfaces for data entering by direct user
input”: will data entering be relevant to alphanumeric data or also to
GIS (graphic) data (red-lining)?

Also to GiS data.

Tender Dossier: Financial Offer, Annex IV is missing in the Tender
Dossier. We are using c4_g_annexivfinoffer_en.doc template dated
“November 2010 (update March 2011)”. Is it right ?

The document called budget breakdown B4 is the necessary document to be filled in in case of stating the 
financial offer.

Technical Specification, item 3, External probes, could you please clarify some points of the Tech 
Specifications:

A precision GIS-based GPS, equipped with GSM/GPRS card, or
A smart phone equipped with GPS software. Note that in the first case the accuracy is less 1 meter, 
in the second one about 3-10 meters.

Precision tools can be different. We have claryfied the minimum
specification of the probes. Please note that those must be
waterproof. The external probes are responsible for the data input.
The Tenderer can choose how many of those are for inland water and
for river. The territory is a cross border area including Csongrad,
parts of Bacs-Kiskun and parts of Bekes county on the Hungarian side
and Kanjiza Region on the Serbian side. There are also existing
softwares managed by the Lower Tisa Environmental and Water
Directorate and ICR system must communicate with this one. The
negotiations and permits are the responsibilities of the Tenderer.

Can you clarify ?

Accuracy is not relevant we do not have preferences.

What exactly is meant by the "External probe"? is this meant to be with GPS receivers?
Yes it means exactly this.

Should this tracking data which is sent by the GSM/GPRS network be received and stored in the 
database used by the GIS application?

 Yes, the data is received and stored int the database of the GiS application.

Is there infrastructure for receiving the data from these modems already available?

Yes. We have the relevant infrastructural background.


